
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities.  A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to Stephen Prisby, (971) 673-3200. 
 
 

 
 
 

MEETING NOTICE 
 

RULES OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
 

Oregon Board of Dentistry 
1500 SW 1stth Ave., 7th Floor Conference Room 

Portland, Oregon 97201 
 

January 28, 2014 
 7:00 p.m.  

Committee Members: 
Brandon Schwindt, D.M.D., Chair   
Mary Davidson, M.P.H., R.D.H., E.P.P.    
Alton Harvey, Sr.      

Jill Price, D.M.D. - ODA Representative 
Lynn Ironside, R.D.H. – ODHA Representative 
Bonnie Marshall, CDA, EFDA, EFODA, MADAA - ODAA Representative 

 
AGENDA 

 
Call to Order   Brandon Schwindt, D.M.D., Chair   
 
Review Minutes of August 22, 2013 
 
August 22, 2013 Minutes Attachment #1 
 
Review, discuss and make recommendations to the Board regarding proposed rule changes to 818-012-
0030 Unprofessional Conduct. 
 
  Draft changes to 818-012-0030 Unprofessional Conduct. Attachment #2 
 
Review, discuss and make recommendations to the Board regarding proposed rule changes to 818-012-
0040 Infection Control Guidelines.  
 
   Draft changes to 818-012-0040 Infection Control Guidelines. Attachment #3  
 
Review, discuss and make recommendations to the Board regarding proposed rule changes to 818-021-
0060 Continuing Education - Dentists. 
 
   Draft changes to 818-021-0060 Continuing Education - Dentists. Attachment #4  

 
Review, discuss and make recommendations to the Board regarding proposed rule changes to 818-021-
0070 Continuing Education – Dental Hygienists.  
 

Draft changes to 818-021-0070 Continuing Education – Dental Hygienists. Attachment #5 
 

 



The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities.  A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours before the meeting to Stephen Prisby, (971) 673-3200. 
 

Review, discuss and make recommendations to the Board regarding proposed rule changes to 818-026-
0055 Dental Hygiene and Dental Assistants Procedures Performed Under Nitrous Oxide or Minimal 
Sedation. 
 
      Draft changes to 818-026-0055 Dental Hygiene and Dental Assistants Procedures Performed Under 
      Nitrous Oxide or Minimal Sedation. Attachment #6 

 
Review, discuss and make recommendations to the Board regarding proposed rule changes to 818-012-
0005 Scope of Practice. 
 
 Draft changes to 818-012-0005 Scope of Practice. Attachment #7 
 
Review, discuss and make recommendations to the Board regarding proposed rule changes to 818-042-
0050 Taking of X-Rays – Exposing of Radiographs. 
 
 Draft changes to 818-042-0050 Taking of X-Rays – Exposing of Radiographs. Attachment #8 
 
Review, discuss and make recommendations to the Board regarding proposed rule changes to 818-042-
0060 Certification – Radiologic Proficiency. 
 
 Draft changes to 818-042-0060 Certification – Radiologic Proficiency. Attachment #9 
 
Review, discuss and make recommendations to the Board regarding proposed rule changes to 818-001-
0087 Fees. 
 
 Draft changes to 818-001-0087 Fees. Attachment #10 
 
 
Any Other Business 
 
Adjourn 



August 22, 2013 
Rules Oversight Committee Meeting  
Page 1 of 7 
 

Rules Oversight Committee Meeting 
Minutes 

August 22, 2013 
  
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Brandon Schwindt, D.M.D., Chair 

Mary Davidson, M.P.H., R.D.H. 
    Alton Harvey, Sr.  

Jill Price, D.M.D., ODA  
Lynn Ironside, R.D.H., ODHA  
Bonnie Marshall, C.D.A., E.F.D.A., E.F.O.D.A., M.A.D.A.A., ODAA  

  
STAFF PRESENT:  Patrick D. Braatz, Executive Director 

Paul Kleinstub, D.D.S., M.S., Dental Director/Chief Investigator 
Lori Lindley, Senior Assistant Attorney General – Via Telephone 
Stephen Prisby, Office Manager 
Teresa Haynes, Examination and Licensing Manager  
 

  
OTHERS PRESENT: Jonna Hongo, D.M.D., Board Member; Todd Beck, D.M.D., Board 

Member; Patricia Parker, D.M.D., Board Member; Beryl Fletcher, ODA; 
Les Sturgis, CRNA 

      
 
 
Call to Order:  The meeting was called to order by the Committee Chair at 7:00 p.m. at the Board 
office; 1600 SW 4th Ave., Suite 770, Portland, Oregon. 
 
 
MINUTES 

Ms. Ironside moved and Mr. Harvey seconded that the minutes of the January 22, 2013 
Committee meeting be approved as presented. The motion passed with Ms. Davidson, Mr. 
Harvey, Dr. Price, Ms. Ironside and Ms. Marshall voting aye.  
 
818-012-0005 Scope of Practice 
Ms. Davidson moved and Ms. Ironside seconded that the Committee recommend the Board send 
818-012-0005 forward to a public rule hearing as amended. The motion passed with Ms. 
Davidson, Mr. Harvey, Ms. Ironside and Ms. Marshall voting aye and Dr. Price voting nay. 
 

818-012-0005  
Scope of Practice 
 
(1) The Board determines that the practice of dentistry includes the following procedures 
which the Board finds are included in the curricula of dental schools accredited by the 
American Dental Association, Commission on Dental Accreditation, post-graduate training 
programs or continuing education courses: 
(a) Rhinoplasty; 
(b) Blepharoplasty; 
(c) Rhydidectomy; 
(e) Submental liposuction; 
(f) Laser resurfacing; 

Attachment # 1



August 22, 2013 
Rules Oversight Committee Meeting  
Page 2 of 7 
 

(g) Browlift, either open or endoscopic technique; 
(h) Platysmal muscle plication; 
(i) Dermabrasion; 
(j) Otoplasty; 
(k) Lip augmentation; 
(l) Hair transplantation, not as an isolated procedure for male pattern baldness; and 
(m) Harvesting bone extra orally for dental procedures, including oral and maxillofacial 
procedures. 
 
 
(21) No licensee dentist may perform any of the procedures listed below:  

(a) Rhinoplasty; 
(b) Blepharoplasty; 
(c) Rhydidectomy; 
(e) Submental liposuction; 
(f) Laser resurfacing; 
(g) Browlift, either open or endoscopic technique; 
(h) Platysmal muscle plication; 
(i) Dermabrasion; 
(j) Otoplasty; 
(k) Lip augmentation; 
(l) Hair transplantation, not as an isolated procedure for male pattern baldness; and 
(m) Harvesting bone extra orally for dental procedures, including oral and 
maxillofacial procedures,  
 
unless the dentist:  

 
(aA) Has successfully completed a residency in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery 
accredited by the American Dental Association, Commission on Dental Accreditation 
(CODA); and 
(bB) Has successfully completed a clinical fellowship, of at least one continuous year 
in duration, in esthetic (cosmetic) surgery recognized by the American Association of 
Oral and Maxillofacial Surgeons or by the American Dental Association Commission 
on Dental Accreditation; or 
(cC) Holds privileges either: 

(A1) Issued by a credentialing committee of a hospital accredited by the Joint 
Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations (JCAHO) to 
perform these procedures in a hospital setting; or 
(B2) Issued by a credentialing committee for an ambulatory surgical center 
licensed by the State of Oregon and accredited by either the JCAHO or the 
American Association for Ambulatory Health Care (AAAHC). 
 

 
(2) A dentist may utilize Botulinum Toxin Type A to treat a condition that is within 
the scope of the practice of dentistry after completing a minimum of 16 hours in a 
hands on clinical course(s) and the course instructor(s) are approved by the 
American Dental Association Continuing Education Recognition Program (ADA 
CERP) or the Academy of General Dentistry (AGD). 
 

 
 
  

Attachment # 1



August 22, 2013 
Rules Oversight Committee Meeting  
Page 3 of 7 
 

818-013-0001 Definitions 
Dr. Price moved and Mr. Harvey seconded that the Committee recommend the Board send 818-
013-0001 forward to a public rule hearing as presented. The motion passed with Ms. Davidson, 
Mr. Harvey, Dr. Price, Ms. Ironside and Ms. Marshall voting aye. 
 
 

818-013-0001  
Definitions 

For the purpose of this section, the following definitions apply:  

(1) “Confidential” means that, to the highest degree possible, the identities of the 
licensees investigated for alleged addiction to, dependence upon, or abuse of alcohol, 
drugs, and mind altering substances, or mental health disorders, and who have a 
diagnosed substance abuse disorder or mental health disorder, will be kept confidential 
by the Board and not be a matter of public record.  

(2) “Diagnosis” means the principal mental health or substance use diagnosis listed in 
the DSM. The diagnosis is determined through the evaluation and any examinations, 
tests, or consultations suggested by the evaluation, and is the medically appropriate 
reason for services.  

(3) “Direct Observe” means that a collection taker is in the restroom with donor and 
observes the providing of the sample throughout the entire process.  

(4) “Diversion Coordinator” means the individual(s) authorized by the Board and the 
Executive Director to know the identities of the licensees who are candidates for or who 
are enrolled in HPSP.  

(5) “Division” means the Oregon Health Authority, Addictions and Mental Health Division. 

(6) “DSM” means the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, published 
by the American Psychiatric Association.  

(7) “Evaluation” means the process a Board approved, independent evaluator uses to 
diagnose the licensee’s symptoms and to recommend treatment options for the licensee.  

(8) “Health Professionals’ Services Program” (HPSP) means the consolidated, statewide 
health professionals program for licensees diagnosed with a substance use disorder, a 
mental health disorder, or both types of disorders, as established by ORS 676.190.  

(9) “Independent evaluator” means a Board approved individual or entity qualified to 
evaluate, diagnose, and recommend treatment regimens for substance abuse disorders, 
mental health disorders, or co-occurring disorders.  

(10) “Mental health disorder” means a clinically significant behavioral or psychological 
syndrome or pattern that occurs in an individual and that is associated with present 
distress or disability or with a significantly increased risk of suffering death, pain, 
disability, or an important loss of freedom that is identified in the DSM. “Mental health 
disorder” includes gambling disorders.  

Attachment # 1



August 22, 2013 
Rules Oversight Committee Meeting  
Page 4 of 7 
 

(11) “Monitoring agreement” means an individualized agreement between a licensee and 
the HPSP vendor that meets the requirements for a diversion agreement set by ORS 
676.190.  

(12) “Monitoring Entity” means an independent third-party that monitors licensees’ 
program enrollment statuses and monitoring agreement compliance.  

(13) “Non-disciplinary” means the Board will not take disciplinary action or enter 
disciplinary orders against a licensee who agrees to enter into the HPSP and remains 
compliant with that program. 

(14) “Non-identifying” means a system where the licensee is referred to by number 
rather than name and the licensee’s identity remains confidential to the Board.  

(15) “Program” means the process whereby allegations of addiction to, dependence 
upon, or abuse of alcohol, drugs, or mind altering substances or mental health disorders 
are investigated, evaluated, and reported to the Board for action.  

(16) “Self-referred licensee” means a licensee who seeks to participate in the 
HPSP program without referral from the Board.  

(17)  (16) “Substance Use Disorders” means disorders related to the taking of a drug of 
abuse including alcohol, to the side effects of a medication, and to a toxin exposure. The 
disorders include substance use disorders such as substance dependence and 
substance abuse, and substance-induced disorders, including substance intoxication, 
withdrawal, delirium, and dementia, as well as substance induced psychotic disorder, 
mood disorder, etc., as defined in DSM criteria.  

(18)  (17) “Substantial non-compliance” means that a licensee is in violation of the terms 
of his or her monitoring agreement in a way that gives rise to concerns about the 
licensee’s ability or willingness to participate in the program. Substantial non-compliance 
and non-compliance include, but are not limited to, the factors listed in ORS 
676.190(1)(f). Conduct that occurred before a licensee entered into a monitoring 
agreement does not violate the terms of that monitoring agreement.  

(19)  (18) “Successful completion” means the licensee has complied with the licensee’s 
monitoring agreement to the satisfaction of the Board.  

(20) (19) “Toxicology testing” means urine testing or alternative chemical monitoring 
including, but not limited to blood, saliva, or breath as conducted by a laboratory 
certified, accredited or licensed and approved for toxicology testing.  

(21)  (20) “Treatment” means the planned, specific, individualized health and behavioral-
health procedures, activities, services and supports that a treatment provider uses to 
remediate symptoms of a substance use disorder, mental health disorder or both types 
of disorders.  

(22)  (21) “Vendor” means the entity that has contracted with the Division to conduct the 
program.  

 

Attachment # 1



August 22, 2013 
Rules Oversight Committee Meeting  
Page 5 of 7 
 

(23)  (22) “Voluntary” means that the Board cannot compel a licensee to enter the HPSP.  

 
818-013-0005 Participation in Health Professionals’ Services Program 
 
Mr. Harvey moved and Ms. Ironside seconded that the Committee recommend the Board send 
818-013-0005 forward to a public rule hearing as presented. The motion passed with Ms. 
Davidson, Mr. Harvey, Dr. Price, Ms. Ironside and Ms. Marshall voting aye. 
 

818-013-0005  
Participation in Health Professionals’ Services Program 

(1) Effective July 1, 2010, the Board participates in the Health Professionals’ Services 
Program (HPSP).  

(a) The Board establishes procedures to process cases of licensees preparatory to 
transfer to HPSP.  

(b) The procedures will be confidential, non-disciplinary, and voluntary.  

(c) The Executive Director will have overall management responsibilities for the 
procedures. The Executive Director will designate Board staff to serve as Diversion 
Coordinator(s) who will manage and conduct investigations and report to the Board.  

(d) The Diversion Coordinator(s) will investigate information related to addiction to, 
dependence upon, or abuse of alcohol, drugs, or mind altering substances or mental 
health disorders, by licensees and provide licensees with resources for evaluations, if 
appropriate.  

(2) Only licensees of the Board who meet the referral criteria may be referred by the 
Board to the HPSP.  

(a) The Board may refer a licensee to the HPSP in lieu of public discipline.  

(b) In the event a licensee declines to submit to an evaluation or declines referral to 
HPSP, the Diversion Coordinator(s) will present the matter to the Board for decision and 
the Board’s action may jeopardize the confidential nature of licensee’s status as a 
candidate for, or enrollment in, HPSP.  

(3) Licensees may self-refer to HPSP without Board approval as permitted by ORS 
676.190(5).  

 

818-026-0060 Moderate Sedation Permit 
 
Ms. Ironside moved and Mr. Harvey seconded that the Committee recommend the Board send 
818-026-0060 forward to a public rule hearing as presented. The motion passed with Ms. 
Davidson, Mr. Harvey, Dr. Price, Ms. Ironside and Ms. Marshall voting aye. 
 

 

Attachment # 1



August 22, 2013 
Rules Oversight Committee Meeting  
Page 6 of 7 
 

818-026-0060  
Moderate Sedation Permit  

Moderate sedation, minimal sedation, and nitrous oxide sedation.  

(1) The Board shall issue or renew a Moderate Sedation Permit to an applicant who:  

(a) Is a licensed dentist in Oregon;  

(b) Either holds a current Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS) or Pediatric Advanced 
Life Support (PALS) certificate, whichever is appropriate for the patient being sedated, or 
successfully completes the American Dental Association’s course “Recognition and 
Management of Complications during Minimal and Moderate Sedation” at least every 
two years; and  

(c) Satisfies one of the following criteria:  

(A) Completion of a comprehensive training program in enteral and/or parenteral 
sedation that satisfies the requirements described in Part III  V of the ADA Guidelines for 
Teaching Pain Control and Sedation to Dentists and Dental Students (2007) at the time 
training was commenced.  

 
 
818-042-0060 Radiologic Proficiency 
 
Mr. Harvey moved and Ms. Marshall seconded that the Committee recommend the Board send 
818-042-0060 forward to a public rule hearing as amended. The motion passed with Ms. 
Davidson, Mr. Harvey, Dr. Price, Ms. Ironside and Ms. Marshall voting aye. 
 

818-042-0060  
Certification — Radiologic Proficiency 

(1) The Board may certify a dental assistant in radiologic proficiency by credential in 
accordance with OAR 818-042-0120, or if the assistant:  

(2) Submits an application on a form approved by the Board, pays the application fee 
and:  

(a) Completes a course of instruction in a program approved by the Oregon Health 
Authority, Oregon Public Health Division, Office of Environmental Public Health, 
Radiation Protection Services, or the Oregon Board of Dentistry, in accordance with 
OAR 333-106-0055 or submits evidence that RPS recognizes that the equivalent training 
has been successfully completed;  

(b) Passes the written Dental Radiation Health and Safety Examination administered by 
the Dental Assisting National Board, Inc. (DANB), or comparable exam administered by 
any other testing entity authorized by the Board, or other comparable requirements 
approved by the Oregon Board of Dentistry; and  

 

Attachment # 1



August 22, 2013 
Rules Oversight Committee Meeting  
Page 7 of 7 
 

(c) Passes a clinical examination approved by the Board and graded by the Dental 
Assisting National Board, Inc. (DANB), or any other testing entity authorized by the 
Board, consisting of exposing, developing and mounting a full mouth series of 
radiographs or by submitting a digital full mouth series of radiographs (14 to 18 
periapical and 4 bitewing radiographs) within one hour and under the supervision of a 
person permitted to take radiographs in Oregon. No portion of the clinical examination 
may be completed in advance; a maximum of three retakes is permitted; only the 
applicant may determine the necessity of retakes. The radiographs should be taken on 
an adult patient with at least 24 fully erupted teeth. The radiographs must be submitted 
for grading within six months after they are taken. 

 
 
Other Business: 
 
Ms. Davidson moved and Dr. Price seconded that the Committee recommends the concept to 
add language to 818-012-0040 Infection Control Guidelines requiring licensees to maintain 
testing results for a set amount of time and recommends the Board send 818-012-0040 forward 
to a public hearing.  The motion passed with Ms. Davidson, Mr. Harvey, Dr. Price, Ms. Ironside 
and Ms. Marshall voting aye. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:27 p.m. 
 

Attachment # 1



 
 

This Page  
 

Left Blank 



 

818-012-0030  

Unprofessional Conduct 

The Board finds that in addition to the conduct set forth in ORS 679.140(2), a licensee engages in unprofessional 
conduct if the licensee does or permits any person to:  

(1) Attempt to obtain a fee by fraud or misrepresentation.  

(2) Obtaining a fee by fraud or misrepresentation.  

(a) A licensee obtains a fee by fraud if the licensee obtains a fee by knowingly making or permitting any person to 
make a material, false statement intending that a recipient who is unaware of the truth rely upon the statement.  

(b) A licensee obtains a fee by misrepresentation if the licensee obtains a fee through making or permitting any 
person to make a material, false statement.  

(c) Giving cash discounts and not disclosing them to third party payors is not fraud or misrepresentation.  

(3) Offer rebates, split fees, or commissions for services rendered to a patient to any person other than a partner, 
employee, or employer.  

(4) Accept rebates, split fees, or commissions for services rendered to a patient from any person other than a partner, 
employee, or employer.  

(5) Initiate, or engage in, with a patient, any behavior with sexual connotations. The behavior can include but is not 
limited to, inappropriate physical touching; kissing of a sexual nature; gestures or expressions, any of which are 
sexualized or sexually demeaning to a patient; inappropriate procedures, including, but not limited to, disrobing and 
draping practices that reflect a lack of respect for the patient's privacy; or initiating inappropriate communication, 
verbal or written, including, but not limited to, references to a patient's body or clothing that are sexualized or sexually 
demeaning to a patient; and inappropriate comments or queries about the professional's or patient's sexual 
orientation, sexual performance, sexual fantasies, sexual problems, or sexual preferences.  

(6) Engage in an unlawful trade practice as defined in ORS 646.605 to 646.608.  

(7) Fail to present a treatment plan with estimated costs to a patient upon request of the patient or to a patient's 
guardian upon request of the patient's guardian.  

(8) Misrepresent any facts to a patient concerning treatment or fees.  

(9)(a) Fail to provide a patient or patient's guardian within 14 days of written request:  

(A) Legible copies of records; and  

(B) Duplicates of study models and radiographs, photographs or legible copies thereof if the radiographs, 
photographs or study models have been paid for.  

(b) The dentist may require the patient or guardian to pay in advance a fee reasonably calculated to cover the costs 
of making the copies or duplicates. The dentist may charge a fee not to exceed $30 for copying 10 or fewer pages of 
written material and no more than $0.50 per page for pages 11 through 50 and no more than $0.25 for each 
additional page (including records copied from microfilm), plus any postage costs to mail copies requested and actual 
costs of preparing an explanation or summary of information, if requested. The actual cost of duplicating x-rays may 
also be charged to the patient. Patient records or summaries may not be withheld from the patient because of any 
prior unpaid bills, except as provided in (9)(a)(B) of this rule.  

Attachment # 2 



 

(10) Fail to identify to a patient, patient's guardian, or the Board the name of an employee, employer, contractor, or 
agent who renders services.  

(11) Use prescription forms pre-printed with any Drug Enforcement Administration number, name of controlled 
substances, or facsimile of a signature.  

(12) Use a rubber stamp or like device to reproduce a signature on a prescription form or sign a blank prescription 
form.  

(13) Order drugs listed on Schedule II of the Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act, 21 U.S.C. Sec. 812, for office 
use on a prescription form.  

(14) Violate any Federal or State law regarding controlled substances.  

(15) Becomes addicted to, or dependent upon, or abuses alcohol, illegal or controlled drugs, or mind altering 
substances.  

(16) Practice dentistry or dental hygiene in a dental office or clinic not owned by an Oregon licensed dentist(s), except 
for an entity described under ORS 679.020(3) and dental hygienists practicing pursuant to ORS 680.205(1)(2).  

(17) Make an agreement with a patient or person, or any person or entity representing patients or persons, or provide 
any form of consideration that would prohibit, restrict, discourage or otherwise limit a person's ability to file a 
complaint with the Oregon Board of Dentistry; to truthfully and fully answer any questions posed by an agent or 
representative of the Board; or to participate as a witness in a Board proceeding.  

(18) Fail to maintain at a minimum a current CPR/BLS certification. 

[Publications: Publications referenced are available from the agency.] 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 679 & 680 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 679.140(1)(c), 679.140(2), 679.170(6) & 680.100 
Hist.: DE 6, f. 8-9-63, ef. 9-11-63; DE 14, f. 1-20-72, ef. 2-10-72; DE 5-1980, f. & ef. 12-26-80; DE 2-1982, f. & ef. 3-
19-82; DE 5-1982, f. & ef. 5-26-82; DE 9-1984, f. & ef. 5-17-84; Renumbered from 818-010-0080; DE 3-1986, f. & ef. 
3-31-86; DE 1-1988, f. 12-28-88, cert. ef. 2-1-89; DE 1-1989, f. 1-27-89, cert. ef. 2-1-89; Renumbered from 818-011-
0020; DE 1-1990, f. 3-19-90, cert. ef. 4-2-90; DE 2-1997, f. & cert. ef. 2-20-97; OBD 3-1999, f. 6-25-99, cert. ef. 7-1-
99; OBD 1-2006, f. 3-17-06, cert. ef. 4-1-06; OBD 1-2007, f. & cert. ef. 3-1-07; OBD 3-2007, f. & cert. ef. 11-30-07; 
OBD 1-2008, f. 11-10-08, cert. ef. 12-1-08; OBD 2-2009, f. 10-21-09, cert. ef. 11-1-09  

 

Attachment # 2 



 

818-012-0040  

Infection Control Guidelines  

In determining what constitutes unacceptable patient care with respect to infection control, the Board may consider 
current infection control guidelines such as those of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention and the 
American Dental Association. Additionally, licensees must comply with the following requirements:  

(1) Disposable gloves shall be worn whenever placing fingers into the mouth of a patient or when handling blood or 
saliva contaminated instruments or equipment. Appropriate hand hygiene shall be performed prior to gloving.  

(2) Masks and protective eyewear or chin-length shields shall be worn by licensees and other dental care workers 
when spattering of blood or other body fluids is likely.  

(3) Between each patient use, instruments or other equipment that come in contact with body fluids shall be sterilized.  

(4) Heat sterilizing devices shall be tested for proper function on a weekly basis by means of a biological monitoring 
system that indicates micro-organisms kill each calendar week in which patients are treated. Testing results shall 
be retained by the licensee for the current calendar year and the two preceding calendar years.  

(5) Environmental surfaces that are contaminated by blood or saliva shall be disinfected with a chemical germicide 
which is mycobactericidal at use.  

(6) Impervious backed paper, aluminum foil, or plastic wrap may be used to cover surfaces that may be contaminated 
by blood or saliva and are difficult or impossible to disinfect. The cover shall be replaced between patients.  

(7) All contaminated wastes and sharps shall be disposed of according to any governmental requirements. 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 679.120, 679.250(7), 680.075 & 680.150  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 679.140, 679.140(4) & 680.100  
Hist.: DE 1-1988, f. 12-28-88, cert. ef. 2-1-89; DE 1-1989, f. 1-27-89, cert. ef. 2-1-89; DE 2-1992, f. & cert. ef. 6-24-
92; OBD 1-2004, f. 5-27-04, cert. ef. 6-1-04; OBD 1-2008, f. 11-10-08, cert. ef. 12-1-08; OBD 3-2013, f. 10-24-13, 
cert. ef. 1-1-14 

 



 
 

This Page  
 

Left Blank 



 

818-021-0060  

Continuing Education — Dentists  

(1) Each dentist must complete 40 hours of continuing education every two years. Continuing education (C.E.) must 
be directly related to clinical patient care or the practice of dental public health. 

(2) Dentists must maintain records of successful completion of continuing education for at least four licensure years 
consistent with the licensee's licensure cycle. (A licensure year for dentists is April 1 through March 31.) The licensee, 
upon request by the Board, shall provide proof of successful completion of continuing education courses.  

(3) Continuing education includes:  

(a) Attendance at lectures, study clubs, college post-graduate courses, or scientific sessions at conventions.  

(b) Research, graduate study, teaching or preparation and presentation of scientific sessions. No more than 12 hours 
may be in teaching or scientific sessions. (Scientific sessions are defined as scientific presentations, table clinics, 
poster sessions and lectures.)  

(c) Correspondence courses, videotapes, distance learning courses or similar self-study course, provided that the 
course includes an examination and the dentist passes the examination.  

(d) Continuing education credit can be given for volunteer pro bono dental services provided in the state of Oregon; 
community oral health instruction at a public health facility located in the state of Oregon; authorship of a publication, 
book, chapter of a book, article or paper published in a professional journal; participation on a state dental board, 
peer review, or quality of care review procedures; successful completion of the National Board Dental Examinations 
taken after initial licensure; a recognized specialty examination taken after initial licensure; or test development for 
clinical dental, dental hygiene or specialty examinations. No more than 6 hours of credit may be in these areas.  

(4) At least three hours of continuing education must be related to medical emergencies in a dental office. No more 
than four hours of Practice Management and Patient Relations may be counted toward the C.E. requirement in any 
renewal period.  

(5) All dentists licensed by the Oregon Board of Dentistry will complete a one-hour pain management course specific 
to Oregon provided by the Pain Management Commission of the Oregon Health Authority. All applicants or licensees 
shall complete this requirement by January 1, 2010 or within 24 months of the first renewal of the dentist's license. 

(6) At least X hours of continuing education must be related to infection control. 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 679 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 679.250(9)  
Hist.: DE 3-1987, f. & ef. 10-15-87; DE 4-1987(Temp), f. & ef. 11-25-87; DE 1-1988, f. 12-28-88, cert. ef. 2-1-89; DE 
1-1989, f. 1-27-89, cert. ef. 2-1-89; Renumbered from 818-020-0072; DE 1-1990, f. 3-19-90, cert. ef. 4-2-90; OBD 9-
2000, f. & cert. ef. 7-28-00; OBD 16-2001, f. 12-7-01, cert. ef. 4-1-02; OBD 3-2007, f. & cert. ef. 11-30-07; OBD 2-
2009, f. 10-21-09, cert. ef. 11-1-09; OBD 3-2011(Temp), f. 6-30-11, cert. ef. 7-1-11 thru 12-27-11; OBD 4-2011, f. & 
cert. ef. 11-15-11  

 

Attachment # 4



 
 

This Page  
 

Left Blank 



 

818-021-0070  

Continuing Education — Dental Hygienists 

(1) Each dental hygienist must complete 24 hours of continuing education every two years. An Expanded Practice 
Permit Dental Hygienist shall complete a total of 36 hours of continuing education every two years. Continuing 
education (C.E.) must be directly related to clinical patient care or the practice of dental public health.  

(2) Dental hygienists must maintain records of successful completion of continuing education for at least four 
licensure years consistent with the licensee's licensure cycle. (A licensure year for dental hygienists is October 1 
through September 30.) The licensee, upon request by the Board, shall provide proof of successful completion of 
continuing education courses.  

(3) Continuing education includes:  

(a) Attendance at lectures, study clubs, college post-graduate courses, or scientific sessions at conventions.  

(b) Research, graduate study, teaching or preparation and presentation of scientific sessions. No more than six hours 
may be in teaching or scientific sessions. (Scientific sessions are defined as scientific presentations, table clinics, 
poster sessions and lectures.)  

(c) Correspondence courses, videotapes, distance learning courses or similar self-study course, provided that the 
course includes an examination and the dental hygienist passes the examination.  

(d) Continuing education credit can be given for volunteer pro bono dental hygiene services provided in the state of 
Oregon; community oral health instruction at a public health facility located in the state of Oregon; authorship of a 
publication, book, chapter of a book, article or paper published in a professional journal; participation on a state 
dental board, peer review, or quality of care review procedures; successful completion of the National Board Dental 
Hygiene Examination, taken after initial licensure; or test development for clinical dental hygiene examinations. No 
more than 6 hours of credit may be in these areas.  

(4) At least three hours of continuing education must be related to medical emergencies in a dental office. No more 
than two hours of Practice Management and Patient Relations may be counted toward the C.E. requirement in any 
renewal period. 

(5) Dental hygienists who hold a Nitrous Oxide Permit must meet the requirements contained in OAR 818-026-
0040(9) for renewal of the Nitrous Oxide Permit. 

(6) At least X hours of continuing education must be related to infection control. 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 679 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 279.250(9) 
Hist.: DE 3-1987, f. & ef. 10-15-87; DE 1-1988, f. 12-28-88, cert. ef. 2-1-89; DE 1-1989, f. 1-27-89, cert. ef. 2-1-89; 
Renumbered from 818-020-0073; DE 1-1990, f. 3-19-90, cert. ef. 4-2-90; OBD 9-2000, f. & cert. ef. 7-28-00; OBD 2-
2002, f. 7-31-02, cert. ef. 10-1-02; OBD 2-2004, f. 7-12-04, cert. ef. 7-15-04; OBD 3-2007, f. & cert. ef. 11-30-07; 
OBD 2-2009, f. 10-21-09, cert. ef. 11-1-09; OBD 1-2010, f. 6-22-10, cert. ef. 7-1-10; OBD 3-2011(Temp), f. 6-30-11, 
cert. ef. 7-1-11 thru 12-27-11; OBD 4-2011, f. & cert. ef. 11-15-11  

 

Attachment # 5



 
 

This Page  
 

Left Blank 



 

818-026-0055  

Dental Hygiene and Dental Assistant Procedures Performed Under Nitrous Oxide or Minimal Sedation 

(1) Under indirect supervision, dental hygiene procedures may be performed for a patient who is under nitrous oxide 
or minimal sedation under the following conditions: 

(a) A licensee holding a Nitrous Oxide, Minimal, Moderate, Deep Sedation or General Anesthesia Permit administers 
the sedative agents;  

(b) The permit holder performs the appropriate pre- and post-operative evaluation and discharges the patient in 
accordance with 818-026-0050(7) and (8); and  

(c) An anesthesia monitor, in addition to the dental hygienist performing the authorized procedures, is present with 
the patient at all times only if the dental hygienist does not hold a nitrous oxide permits or current BLS CPR 
card..  

(2) Under direct supervision, a dental assistant may perform those procedures for which the dental assistant holds 
the appropriate certification for a patient who is under nitrous oxide or minimal sedation under the following 
conditions: 

(a) A licensee holding the Nitrous Oxide, Minimal, Moderate, Deep Sedation or General Anesthesia Permit 
administers the sedative agents;  

(b) The permit holder, or an anesthesia monitor, monitors the patient; and  

(c) The permit holder performs the appropriate pre- and post-operative evaluation and discharges the patient in 
accordance with 818-026-0050(7) and (8).  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 679 & 680  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 679.250(7) & 679.250(10)  
Hist.: OBD 3-2003, f. 9-15-03, cert. ef. 10-1-03; OBD 1-2005, f. 1-28-05, cert. ef. 2-1-05; OBD 1-2010, f. 6-22-10, 
cert. ef. 7-1-10; OBD 2-2012, f. 6-14-12, cert. ef. 7-1-12 

 

Attachment # 6



 
 

This Page  
 

Left Blank 



 

818-012-0005  

Scope of Practice 

(1) No dentist may perform any of the procedures listed below:  

(a) Rhinoplasty;  

(b) Blepharoplasty;  

(c) Rhydidectomy;  

(d) Submental liposuction;  

(e) Laser resurfacing;  

(f) Browlift, either open or endoscopic technique;  

(g) Platysmal muscle plication;  

(h) Otoplasty;  

(i) Dermabrasion;  

(j) Lip augmentation;  

(k) Hair transplantation, not as an isolated procedure for male pattern baldness; and  

(l) Harvesting bone extra orally for dental procedures, including oral and maxillofacial procedures.  

(2) Unless the dentist:  

(a) Has successfully completed a residency in Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery accredited by the American Dental 
Association, Commission on Dental Accreditation (CODA), and  

(b) Has successfully completed a clinical fellowship, of at least one continuous year in duration, in esthetic (cosmetic) 
surgery recognized by the American Association of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgeons or by the American Dental 
Association Commission on Dental Accreditation, or  

(c) Holds privileges either:  

(A) Issued by a credentialing committee of a hospital accredited by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of 
Healthcare Organizations (JCAHO) to perform these procedures in a hospital setting; or  

(B) Issued by a credentialing committee for an ambulatory surgical center licensed by the State of Oregon and 
accredited by either the JCAHO or the American Association for Ambulatory Health Care (AAAHC). Accreditation 
Association for Ambulatory Health Care (AAAHC), 

(3) A dentist may utilize Botulinum Toxin Type A to treat a condition that is within the scope of the practice of dentistry 
after completing a minimum of 16 hours in a hands on clinical course(s) in which the provider is approved by the 
Academy of General Dentistry Program Approval for Continuing Education (AGD PACE) or by the American Dental 
Association Continuing Education Recognition Program (ADA CERP). 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 679 & 680  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 679.010(2), 679.140(1)(c), 679.140(2), 679.170(6) & 680.100  
Hist.: OBD 6-2001, f. & cert. ef. 1-8-01; OBD 1-2013, f. 5-15-13, cert. ef. 7-1-13; OBD 3-2013, f. 10-24-13, cert. ef. 1-
1-1 

Attachment  # 7 



 
 

This Page  
 

Left Blank 



 

818-042-0050  

Taking of X-Rays — Exposing of Radiographs 

(1) A dentist may authorize the following persons to place films, adjust equipment preparatory to exposing films, and 
expose the films under general supervision: 

(a) A dental assistant certified by the Board in radiologic proficiency;  

(b) A radiologic technologist licensed by the Oregon Board of Medical Imaging and certified by the Oregon Board of 
Dentistry (OBD) who has completed ten (10) clock hours in a Board approved dental radiology course and submitted 
a satisfactory full mouth series of radiographs to the OBD. 

(2) A dentist may authorize students in approved instructional programs to take dental x-rays under the conditions 
established by the Oregon Health Authority, Oregon Public Health Division, Office of Environmental Public Health, 
Center for Health Protection, Radiation Protection Services , in OAR 333 division 106. 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 679 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 679.025 & 679.250 
Hist.: OBD 9-1999, f. 8-10-99, cert. ef. 1-1-00; OBD 2-2003, f. 7-14-03 cert. ef. 7-18-03; OBD 4-2004, f. 11-23-04 
cert. ef. 12-1-04; OBD 4-2011, f. & cert. ef. 11-15-11 

 

Attachment # 8



 
 

This Page  
 

Left Blank 



 

818-042-0060  

Certification — Radiologic Proficiency  

(1) The Board may certify a dental assistant in radiologic proficiency by credential in accordance with OAR 818-042-
0120, or if the assistant:  

(2) Submits an application on a form approved by the Board, pays the application fee and:  

(a) Completes a course of instruction in a program approved by the Oregon Health Authority, Oregon Public Health 
Division, Office of Environmental Public Health,  Center for Health Protection, Radiation Protection Services, or 
the Oregon Board of Dentistry, in accordance with OAR 333-106-0055 or submits evidence that RPS recognizes that 
the equivalent training has been successfully completed;  

(b) Passes the written Dental Radiation Health and Safety Examination administered by the Dental Assisting National 
Board, Inc. (DANB), or comparable exam administered by any other testing entity authorized by the Board, or other 
comparable requirements approved by the Oregon Board of Dentistry; and  

(c) Passes a clinical examination approved by the Board and graded by the Dental Assisting National Board, Inc. 
(DANB), or any other testing entity authorized by the Board, consisting of exposing, developing and mounting a full 
mouth series of radiographs or by exposing and mounting a digital full mouth series of radiographic images (14 to 18 
periapical and 4 bitewing radiographic images) within one hour and under the supervision of a person permitted to 
take radiographs in Oregon. No portion of the clinical examination may be completed in advance; a maximum of three 
retakes is permitted (i.e., three individual radiographic exposures, not three full mouth series); only the applicant may 
determine the necessity of retakes. The radiographic images should be acquired on an adult patient with at least 24 
fully erupted teeth. The full mouth series must be submitted for grading within six months after it is taken. 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 679  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 679.020, 679.025 & 679.250  
Hist.: OBD 9-1999, f. 8-10-99, cert. ef. 1-1-00; OBD 2-2003, f. 7-14-03 cert. ef. 7-18-03; OBD 4-2004, f. 11-23-04 
cert. ef. 12-1-04; OBD 3-2005, f. 10-26-05, cert. ef. 11-1-05; OBD 3-2007, f. & cert. ef. 11-30-07; OBD 4-2011, f. & 
cert. ef. 11-15-11; OBD 3-2013, f. 10-24-13, cert. ef. 1-1-14 

 

Attachment # 9



 
 

This Page  
 

Left Blank 



 

818-001-0087  

Fees 

(1) The Board adopts the following fees:  

(a) Biennial License Fees:  

(A) Dental — $315;  

(B) Dental — retired — $0;  

(C) Dental Faculty — $260;  

(D) Volunteer Dentist — $0;  

(E) Dental Hygiene — $155;  

(F) Dental Hygiene — retired — $0;  

(G) Volunteer Dental Hygienist — $0.  

(b) Biennial Permits, Endorsements or Certificates:  

(A) Nitrous Oxide Permit — $40;  

(B) Minimal Sedation Permit — $75;  

(C) Moderate Sedation Permit — $75;  

(D) Deep Sedation Permit — $75;  

(E) General Anesthesia Permit — $140;  

(F) Radiology — $75;  

(G) Expanded Function Dental Assistant — $50;  

(H) Expanded Function Orthodontic Assistant — $50;  

(I) Instructor Permits — $40;  

(J) Dental Hygiene Restorative Functions Endorsement — $50;  

(K) Restorative Functions Dental Assistant — $50;  

(L) Anesthesia Dental Assistant — $50;  

(M) Dental Hygiene, Expanded Practice Permit — $75     

(N) Non-Resident Dental Permit - $100.00 

(c) Applications for Licensure:  

Attachment # 10



 
 

This Page  
 

Left Blank 



 

(A) Dental — General and Specialty — $345;  

(B) Dental Faculty — $305;  

(C) Dental Hygiene — $180;  

(D) Licensure Without Further Examination — Dental and Dental Hygiene — $790.  

(d) Examinations:  

(A) Jurisprudence — $0;  

(B) Dental Specialty:  

(i) If only one candidate applies for the exam, a fee of $2,000.00 will be required at the time of application; and  

(ii) If two candidates apply for the exam, a fee of $1,000.00 will be required at the time of application; and  

(iii) If three or more candidates apply for the exam, a fee of $750.00 will be required at the time of application.  

(e) Duplicate Wall Certificates — $50.  

(2) Fees must be paid at the time of application and are not refundable.  

(3) The Board shall not refund moneys under $5.01 received in excess of amounts due or to which the Board has no 
legal interest unless the person who made the payment or the person's legal representative requests a refund in 
writing within one year of payment to the Board.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 679 & 680  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 293.445, 679.060, 679.115, 679.120, 679.250, 680.050, 680.075, 680.200 & 680.205  
Hist.: DE 6-1985(Temp), f. & ef. 9-20-85; DE 3-1986, f. & ef. 3-31-86; DE 1-1987, f. & ef. 10-7-87; DE 1-1988, f. 12-
28-88, cert. ef. 2-1-89, corrected by DE 1-1989, f. 1-27-89, cert. ef. 2-1-89; Renumbered from 818-001-0085; DE 2-
1989(Temp), f. & cert. ef. 11-30-89; DE 1-1990, f. 3-19-90, cert. ef. 4-2-90; DE 1-1991(Temp), f. 8-5-91, cert. ef. 8-15-
91; DE 2-1991, f. & cert. ef. 12-31-91; DE 1-1992(Temp), f. & cert. ef. 6-24-92; DE 2-1993, f. & cert. ef. 7-13-93; OBD 
1-1998, f. & cert. ef. 6-8-98; OBD 3-1999, f. 6-25-99, cert. ef. 7-1-99; Administrative correction, 8-2-99; OBD 5-2000, 
f. 6-22-00, cert. ef. 7-1-00; OBD 8-2001, f. & cert. ef. 1-8-01; OBD 2-2005, f. 1-31-05, cert. ef. 2-1-05; OBD 2-2007, f. 
4-26-07, cert. ef. 5-1-07; OBD 3-2007, f. & cert. ef. 11-30-07; OBD 1-2009(Temp), f. 6-11-09, cert. e. 7-1-09 thru 11-
1-09; OBD 2-2009, f. 10-21-09, cert. ef. 11-1-09; OBD 1-2010, f. 6-22-10, cert. ef. 7-1-10; OBD 3-2011(Temp), f. 6-
30-11, cert. ef. 7-1-11 thru 12-27-11; OBD 4-2011, f. & cert. ef. 11-15-11; OBD 1-2012, f. & cert. ef. 1-27-12; OBD 1-
2013, f. 5-15-13, cert. ef. 7-1-13  

 

Attachment # 10



 
 

This Page  
 

Left Blank 


	Rules_Oversight_Agenda_2014_01_28
	Attachment # 1 - Rules Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes 2013_08_22 DRAFT
	Attachment # 2 - 818-012-0030
	Attachment # 3 - 818-012-0040
	Attachment # 4 - 818-021-0060
	Attachment # 5 - 818-021-0070
	Attachment # 6 - 818-026-0055
	Attachment # 7 - 818-012-0005
	Attachment # 8 - 818-042-0050
	Attachment # 9 - 818-042-0060
	Attachment # 10 - 818-001-0087



